
Santa Cruz County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ www.santacruzcoe.org 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr  ⚈   Ms. Rose Filicetti   ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols  ⚈  Ms. Sue Roth   ⚈   Mr. Dana Sales 

Mr. Abel Sanchez   ⚈    Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday May 16, 2019 

4:00 p.m.  
Board Room 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Dana Sales (President), Jane Royer Barr, Rose Filicetti, Sandra Nichols, Sue Roth, Abel Sanchez,
Bruce Van Allen
Faris Sabbah, Secretary

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Superintendent Sabbah (Secretary) will lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence will be approved or the agenda will be approved as
submitted.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda.  The
Board President will recognize any member of the audience not previously placed on the agenda who
wishes to speak on a matter directly related to school business. Each speaker, on any specific topic,
may speak up three (3) minutes unless otherwise limited or extended by the President.  The
President may allot time to those wishing to speak but no action will be taken on matters presented
(EDC § 35145.5). If appropriate, the President, or any Member of the Board, may direct that a matter
be referred to the Superintendent’s Office for placement on a future agenda.  Please refer to item,
Please Note, on the last item of this agenda.

1



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  

5. CONSENT AGENDA

All items appearing on consent agenda are recommended actions which are considered to be routine
in nature and will be acted upon as one motion.  Specific items may be removed for separate
consideration.  Item(s) removed will be considered immediately following the consent agenda motion
as Deferred Consent Items.

5.0.1 Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on April 18, 2019 
5.0.2 Routine Budget Revisions 
5.0.3 Donations 
5.0.4 Treasurer's Quarterly Report 
5.0.5 Surplus Items 

5.1. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required) 

This item is placed on the agenda to address any items that might be pulled from Agenda Item 
5.0 for further discussion/consideration if so determined. 

6. CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence will be available for review at the meeting location.

7. REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS, AND PRESENTATIONS

7.1 Oasis High School Distinguished Students Recognition 

Students from Oasis High School will be recognized for their outstanding performance 
throughout the 2018-2019 school year.  

Presenters: Jeanne Milnes, Oasis High School 
John Rice, Director, Alternative Education Programs 

7.2 Outstanding Educator Recognition Awards 

Each year, the Santa Cruz County Board of Education celebrates the accomplishments of 
teachers, classified employees, and administrators. Award recipients are nominated by their 
peers, and will be awarded a plaque of outstanding achievement by Superintendent Faris 
Sabbah.  

Award Recipients: Ulli Kummerow, Principal, Radcliff Elementary, PVUSD 
Ethan Ducker, Teacher, Santa Cruz Gardens Elementary, SUESD 
Sheryl Andersen, Classified Employee, Shoreline Middle School, 
LOSD 
Amanda Reilly, Counselor, Harbor High School, SCCS 

Presenters: Jivan Dhaliwal, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 
Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools  

2



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  

7.3 Plan to Upgrade Audio/Visual Equipment in Large COE Conference Rooms 

Jason Borgen will give a brief presentation on creating model learning environments at the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education by upgrading the technology equipment of large COE 
conference rooms.  

Presenter: Jason Borgen, Chief Technology Officer, COE 

7.4 Outreach Plan for Cypress Charter 

In accordance with the Board’s request, the Board will receive a report on Santa Cruz County 
Cypress Charter High School’s outreach plan to increase enrollment for the 2019-2020 school 
year. 
Presenters: Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent of Schools 

Megan Tresham, Principal, Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter High School 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS, AND ACTION ITEMS

8.1 Approve Santa Cruz County Office of Education 2019-2020 Calendar 

The Board will be asked to approve the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Calendar for 
the 2019-2020 school year.  

Presenter: Jivan Dhaliwal, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 

Call for Motion: Dana Sales (President) 

8.2 Approve Alternative Education 2019-2020 Calendar 

The Board will be asked to approve the Alternative Education Calendar for the 2019-2020 
school year.  

Presenter: John Rice, Director, Alternative Education Programs 

Call for Motion: Dana Sales (President) 

8.3 Approve Work Experience Education (WEE) Program 

Per EDC § 51775, the Secondary District Plan and Application for the Work Experience 
Education (WEE) Program must be reviewed every three years. The Board will be asked to 
approve this program.  

Presenters: Leta Vandenheuvel, Work Experience Coordinator, COE 
John Rice, Director, Alternative Education Programs 

Call for Motion: Dana Sales (President) 

3



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  
 

9. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 

County Superintendent of Schools, Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, will provide an update on activities and 
matters of interest.  

 
10. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

 
Trustees will report on matters, events, and activities as related to Board goals of:  Advocating for 
students, maintaining community relations, and promoting student achievement.  

 
11. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if any)  

 
12. ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

 
13. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS  

 
Santa Cruz County Math Contest 
Aptos High School  
Saturday May 11, 2019  
8:45 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 
 
Queer Youth Leadership Awards 
San Lorenzo Valley High School 
7105 Hwy 9, Felton, CA 95018 
Saturday May 11, 2019  
5:30 p.m. - 8:30 p.m. 

 
Santa Cruz County Math Contest Awards Ceremony 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, Tech Center 
May 14, 2019 
5:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m. 

 
Career Advancement Charter Graduation 
Sequoia Academy 
319 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz CA 95062 
May 29, 2019  
5:00 p.m. 

 
Graduations 
Portuguese Hall, 216 Evergreen St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
June 4, 2019  
10:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

 
Graduations 
Portuguese Hall, 216 Evergreen St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
June 5, 2019  
9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

 
Graduations 
Sequoia Academy, 319 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz CA 95062 
June 6, 2019 
9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

 
4



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  

2019 Foster & Homeless Education Summit 
Monterey Peninsula College, Lecture Forum 103 
980 Fremont St., Monterey CA 93940 
June 12, 2019 
8:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m 

Regular Meeting of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  
June 20, 2019  
4:00 p.m.  

14. ADJOURNMENT

The Board President will adjourn the meeting.

5



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  

PLEASE NOTE: 

Public Participation: 

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz 
County Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the 
beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Persons 
wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record.  The president of the Board will 
establish a time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the 
public.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session except those relating to litigation, 
personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session.  Expulsion 
appeal hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the 
appellant. 

Backup Documentation: 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the County 
Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal business hours. 

Translation Requests: 

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with 
Sage Leibenson by telephone at (831) 466-5900  Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés 
están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por teléfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 

ADA Compliance: 

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, 
on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the 
federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Individuals who need this agenda in an 
alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
the meeting should contact Sage Leibenson, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

6



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Administrative Department 

SUBJECT : Regular Board Meeting Minutes of April 18, 2019 

BACKGROUND 

Consent Agenda items are recommended for approval as actions routine in nature and acted 
upon as one motion. Specific items may be removed for specific consideration.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Board approval of April 18, 2019 Minutes.  

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #5.0.1 
7



 
 
Santa Cruz County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ santacruzcoe.org 

Ms. Jane Royer Barr  ⚈   Ms. Rose Filicetti   ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols  ⚈  Ms. Sue Roth   ⚈   Mr. Dana Sales   
 Mr. Abel Sanchez   ⚈    Mr. Bruce Van Allen  

 
 

Santa Cruz County Board of Education  
Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday April 18, 2019  

4:00 p.m.  
Board Room 

 
 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 

Board Present 
 
Rose Filicetti  
Sandra Nichols 
Sue Roth 
Dana Sales 
Abel Sanchez 
Bruce Van Allen 
Faris Sabbah (Secretary) 

 
Staff Present 
 
Jivan Dhaliwal  
Mary Hart 
Sage Leibenson 
 
Absent 
 
Jane Royer Barr 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Superintendent Sabbah led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence will be approved or the agenda will be approved as 
submitted.  
 
It was M.S.C. (Roth/Van Allen) to approve the agenda.  
 
Ayes:  Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: Barr, Filicetti, Sanchez 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Rocco Cappalla expressed his concern about transitions in staff at the Santa Cruz County Office of 
Education and emphasized the importance in maintaining momentum in the County science initiative.  

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
5.0.1. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held on March 21, 2019 
5.0.2. Routine Budget Revisions 
5.0.3. Donations 
5.0.4. Surplus Items 
 
It was M.S.C. (Van Allen/Nichols) to approve the consent agenda.  
 
Ayes:  Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr, Filicetti, Sanchez 
 
Trustee Sanchez arrived at 4:10 p.m. 

 
5.1. DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required)  

 
None.  

 
6. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
None. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS,AND ACTION ITEMS 

 
7.1 New Business 
 

Rory Bruce, President of CSEA Chapter #484, “sunshined” proposed language to update 
Article 7 regarding Organizational Security, Article 15 regarding Assignments & Transfers, and 
Article 21 regarding Professional Growth for the 2019-2020 Classified Employee Unit 
Agreement to the Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools.  
 

 
 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 

7.2 Adopt Resolution #19-03, Day of the Teacher 
 

Education Code, Section 372229(a), specifies the Second Wednesday in May as the Day of 
the Teacher, a day having special significance.  All public schools and educational institutions 
are encouraged to observe those days, and, specifically on the Day of the Teacher, conduct 
exercises commemorating and directing attention to the teachers and the teaching profession.  

 
It was M.S.C. (Van Allen/Roth) to approve Resolution #19-03, Day of the Teacher.  

 
Ayes:  Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr, Filicetti 

 
7.3 Adopt Resolution #19-04, Classified Employees Week 

 
California Senate Bill 1552, passed in 1984, decreed the third full week in May as California 
School Employees’ Week in official recognition of the services and dedication of classified 
school employees.  

 
It was M.S.C. (Nichols/Sanchez) to approve Resolution #19-04, Classified Employees Week. 

 
Ayes:  Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr, Filicetti  
 
Trustee Filicetti arrived at 4:27 p.m. 
 

7.4 Adopt Resolution #19-05, Prop 58 and English Learner Roadmap  
 

The Board is encouraged by the California Department of Education to Recognize April as 
National Bilingual/Multilingual Learner Advocacy Month (California House Resolution 690), 
and will be asked to consider adopting a Resolution in Support of CA Proposition 58 and the 
English Learner Roadmap. 
 
It was M.S.C. (Nichols/Sanchez) to approve Resolution #19-05, Prop 58 and EL Roadmap. 

 
Ayes:  FIlicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 

7.5 Adopt Resolution #19-06, 2020 Census  
 

Joseph Watkins of Community Action Board gave a brief presentation on the Community 
Action Board of Santa Cruz County’s recent initiatives regarding the 2020 Census Count and 
asked the Board to adopt a resolution (Resolution 19-06) in support of this initiative.  
 
It was M.S.C. (Nichols/Filicetti) to approve Resolution #19-06, 2020 Census. 

 
Ayes:  Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr 

 
7.6 Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter High School (Resolution #19-07) 

 
The Santa Cruz County Board of Education was asked to either approve (Resolution #19-07) 
or deny the creation of a charter school in Live Oak (Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter High 
School). 
 
Associate Superintendent of Educational Services, Jivan Dhaliwal, explained the process of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education followed in reviewing the Charter Petition, provided 
the legal context of charter petition review, and revealed the recommendations from staff.  
 
Subsequently, the Charter Petitioners had three (3) minutes to make a presentation on the 
charter petition. Following the Petitioner’s comments, the Board announced that they would 
allow anyone in the audience to make a public comment, but there were none.  
 
The Board then had an opportunity to ask questions of the Petitioners. Trustee Sanchez, Chair 
of the County Charter Subcommittee, shared that the Committee was in unanimous 
agreement to recommend Resolution #19-07 be approved, authorizing the creation of the 
charter.  
 
The Board requested that the following language within Resolution #19-07 be deleted because 
COE Staff did not locate any deficiencies within the petition and there is no Operational MOU 
required for the approval of the petition:  
 
“WHEREAS, Notwithstanding the deficiencies set forth in the Staff Report, it is the 
determination of the County Board that such deficiencies can be addressed with the Charter 
School through an operational memorandum of understanding (“Operational MOU”) setting 
forth obligations of the Charter School to address and remedy the identified deficiencies.“ 
 
It was M.S.C. (Filicetti/Van Allen) to approve Resolution #19-07 as amended, authorizing 
Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter High School.  

 
Ayes:  Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen 
Nays:  None  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr 
 
 
 

 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 

7.7 Expulsion Appeal 
 

The Santa Cruz County Board of Education conducted a closed hearing regarding Scotts 
Valley Unified School District’s (SVUSD) decision to expel a student (Pupil Appeal #19-01). 
The Board was asked to either approve or deny the appeal of SVUSD’s decision. The motion 
was called for in closed session. 

 
In open session, President Sales reported out that it was M.S.C. (Roth/Filicetti) to affirm the 
Governing Board’s decision to expel a student (Pupil Appeal #19-01). 

 
Ayes:  Filicetti, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Van Allen 
Nays:  Sanchez  
Abstain: None 
Absent: Barr 

 
8. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
County Superintendent of Schools, Faris Sabbah, provided an update on activities and matters of 
interest that have occurred since March 21, 2019.  

 
9. TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each) 

 
Trustee Filicetti attended the a Chamber of Commerce Luncheon which featured a speech by Jimmy 
Panetta. She also attended and event from the Panetta Lecture Series and met with Brandon Napoli, 
the new Director of the Small Business Development Center at Cabrillo College. 
 
Trustee Roth attended the April SCCOE Board Agenda committee meeting. She also attended the 
Annual Meeting of Girl Scouts of California's Central Coast and was re-elected as VP. She also 
attended the SCCOE Board Charter subcommittee meeting concerning Santa Cruz County Cypress 
Charter High School. 
 
Trustee Nichols attended an informational fundraiser for “Girls Inc.” at Chaminade Resort, a supportive 
program for girls in middle and high schools, dedicated to mentoring these young women into beliefs 
that they can go to college and do public speaking with self-confidence. She also attended a meeting 
of a group of community members and 2 city council members that addressed issues of parking, 
transportation, and housing. 
 

10. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if any)  
 

None. 
 

11. ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 
 

None. 
 
12. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS 

 
Student Author’s Fair 
Capitola Mall  
1855 41st Avenue, Capitola, CA 95010 
May 4, 2019 
10:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m. 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 
 

Santa Cruz County Math Contest 
Aptos High School  
Saturday May 11, 2019  
8:45 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 

 
Queer Youth Leadership Awards 
San Lorenzo Valley High School 
7105 Hwy 9, Felton, CA 95018 
Saturday May 11, 2019  
5:30 p.m. - 8:30 p.m. 

 
Regular Meeting of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060  
May 16, 2019  
4:00 p.m. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT  

 
President Sales adjourned the meeting at 6:54 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Minutes, Regular Meeting 
April 18, 2019 
 

PLEASE NOTE: 
  
Public Participation: 
  
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz 
County Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the 
beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Persons 
wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record.  The president of the Board will 
establish a time limit of three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the 
public.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session except those relating to litigation, 
personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session.  Expulsion 
appeal hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the 
appellant. 
  
Backup Documentation: 
  
Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board 
regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the County 
Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal business hours. 
  
Translation Requests: 
  
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with 
Sage Leibenson by telephone at (831) 466-5900  Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés 
están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Sage 
Leibenson por teléfono al numero (831) 466-5900. 
  
ADA Compliance: 
  
In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, 
on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec 12132), and the 
federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Individuals who need this agenda in an 
alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in 
the meeting should contact Sage Leibenson, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900. 

 

 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM: Business/Administration Departments 

SUBJECT: Routine Budget Revisions 

BACKGROUND 

Detailed revisions and narrative follow this page. 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Board approval of routine budget revisions.  

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Adjusts 2018-2019 Spending Plan. 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #5.0.2 
15



16



17



18



19



20



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Business Department 

SUBJECT : Gifts and Donations 

BACKGROUND 

County Board of Education Policy P-3280 requires that all gifts and donations received by 
programs conducted by the County Superintendent of Schools be accepted by the County 
Board of Education.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Accept gifts and donations as follows:  

Program Donor Value 

CTEP Rountree Aura Hardwoods Various wood 
Construction Lumber, Inc. (approx. $125 value) 

CTEP Rountree Keith Lachenmyer $500 
Programs

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Gifts/Donations received will be utilized by the programs to which they are donated. 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #5.0.3 
21



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Business Department 

SUBJECT : Treasurer’s Quarterly Report, March 31, 2019 

BACKGROUND 

The Superintendent/designee is required to provide a report of investments on a quarterly basis. 
Since the SCCOE maintains all of its investments in the County Treasurer’s investment pool, the 
March 31, 2019 quarterly report is provided.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Receive and file report.  

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #5.0.4 
22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29

29



30

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37

37



38

38



39

39



40

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services 

SUBJECT : Surplus Items 

BACKGROUND 

County Board of Education Policy P-3260 requires that all surplus items be reviewed and 
surplused through County Board action. 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Authorize staff to dispose of surplus items as follows:  

Program Item(s) Value 
Various 4 Kangaroo Desks N/S 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #5.0.5 

Please see attached memo regarding Surplus Property.

55



 
 
 
 

 
To:  County Office of Education Board of Trustees 

 
From: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business 

 
Date: May 16, 2019 

 
RE: Surplus Property 

 
The County Office of Education (COE) owns four Kangaroo Desks.  Through research we 
have found these Kangaroo Desks have no value on the local market.  Our 
recommendation is to dispose of the Kangaroo Desks.  Our Business Department will 
offer the desks to other districts in the county. In the event no other district can use them, 
the County Office of Education, will dispose of the desks. 

 
EC § 1279. Disposal of personal property by county superintendent of schools 

 
(a) The county superintendent of schools shall not in any manner dispose of any item 

of personal property worth over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) that 
belongs to the county office of education without meeting the following 
conditions: 

 
(1) Obtaining an independent valuation of the property. 

 
(2) Advertising the property for sale in a newspaper of general circulation 

within the district, or, if there is no newspaper of general circulation 
within the district, in any newspaper of general circulation that is 
regularly circulated in the district.  The advertisement shall be published 
for a period of time in accordance with the policy of the county board of 
education. 

 
(3) Bringing the matter to the attention of the county board of education for 

its discussion at a regularly scheduled public meeting. 
 

(4) Obtaining the approval of the county board of education. 
 

(b) The county superintendent of schools shall not in any manner dispose of any 
personal property worth less than twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) 
that belongs to the county office of education unless he or she certifies the 
value of the property in a quarterly report and submits that report to the 
county board of education for its review.” 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 
 

Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent • 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 • Tel (831) 466-5600 • Fax (831) 466-5607 • www.santacruzcoe.org 
 

56



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2 
Agenda, Board Meeting 
May 16, 2019 

 EC § 17546. Private sale of personal property; disposition of property unsold at public 
auction or of insufficient value to defray cost of sale 

(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds that
the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising,
by any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board.

(b) Any item or items of property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to
Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale
without advertising by any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the
board.

(c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds that the
property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a sale, the property may
be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, or it may be
disposed .”

Education Code 17546 (c) the board must evaluate and vote on the disposal method for the 
smartboards. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The administration recommends upon a unanimous vote per EC 17546 c 
to dispose of the property through the least costly manner.  Donation if an appropriate organization 
can be located or the County refuse. 

57



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Action X Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : John Rice, Director, Alternative Education Department  

SUBJECT : Oasis High School Distinguished Students Recognitions 

BACKGROUND 

18 Students from Oasis High School will be recognized for their outstanding 
performance throughout the 2018-2019 school year.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #7.1 

Participate in Recognition Ceremony. 

None.

58



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Action X Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Jivan Dhaliwal, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services 

SUBJECT : Outstanding Educator Recognition Awards 

BACKGROUND 
The Santa Cruz County Office of Education has been recognizing outstanding 
educators in the community for the past eight years. A selection committee was formed 
to review the 40 nominations using the California Standards for the Teaching 
Profession, the California Professional Standards for Educational Leaders, and the 
criteria below:  

1. Ability to create a passion for learning
2. High expectations for all students
3. Strong communication and collaborative skills
4. Strong sense of values, integrity, and professional ethics
5. Knowledge of subject and curriculum content
6. Commitment to the community they serve

The 2018-2019 honorees are: 
Administrator: Ulli Kummerow, Principal, Radcliff Elementary, Pajaro Valley Unified 
School District 
Classified Employee: Sheryl Andersen, Shoreline Middle School, Live Oak School 
District 
Teacher:  Ethan Ducker, Santa Cruz Gardens, Soquel Union Elementary School District 
Counselor: Amanda Reilly, Harbor High School, Santa Cruz City School District 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #7.2 

Participate in Recognition Ceremony.

None.

59



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Action X Information 

TO: Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

FROM : Jason Borgen, Chief Technology Officer and Sergio Ybarra, Technology Support 
Technician 

SUBJECT : Plan to Upgrade Audio/Visual Equipment in Large COE Conference Rooms

BACKGROUND 
Santa Cruz COE conference rooms are used for a variety of purposes including meetings, 
trainings, and creating opportunities for educators and the community to come to together to 
discuss educational practices and disruptions in our school systems. Modern-day learning 
environments have shifted from a “front of the room” learning space to learning that 
encompasses multiple forms of content, presentations, and presenters--The Santa Cruz COE 
aims to model current learning spaces for all stakeholders. Updates in audio and visual 
technologies have provided schools, universities, and other learning and community spaces the 
ability to provide new forms of presentation and sound amplification tools to support engaged 
learning including video walls, sound zones, and multiple presentation stations as well as to be 
able manage and troubleshoot remotely through a centralized management system. The Santa 
Cruz COE has not updated its audio visual setup significantly since the move to Encinal. A plan 
that has already begun in the small conference rooms include:  

● Phase 1: Update small conference rooms with TVs and wireless streaming -
COMPLETE

● Phase 2: Update large conference rooms with multiple video streaming options including
centralized support management, video wall and digital audio system - By early 2020

● Phase 3: Add video camera feeds to board room for seamless wireless streaming to
other meetings rooms and research updated furniture - 2021-2022

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Approve upgrades.  

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 
18-19: $105,000
19-20: $70,000

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #7.3 
60



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Action X Information 

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education

FROM : Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT : Outreach Plan for Cypress Charter 

BACKGROUND 

Our goal is to increase enrollment at Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter to at least 135 
students for the 2019-20 school year. We have developed an outreach team that includes 
Cypress staff and Alternative Education leadership members to focus our efforts and increase 
student enrollment. We feel that Cypress offers a unique learning environment that offers 
academic rigor within a safe, supportive space. Cypress fosters a diverse student body through 
an inclusive community where each individual is seen and valued. We hope to publicize the 
many benefits the school offers to its students.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Provide feedback on the outreach plan 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Some costs will be needed for the development and deployment of publicity materials and the 
design of a 1 minute video (approximately $5000).  

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #7.4 
61



Santa Cruz County Board of Education ⚈ 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 ⚈ Tel (831) 466-5900 ⚈ www.santacruzcoe.org 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr  ⚈   Ms. Rose Filicetti   ⚈ Ms. Sandra Nichols  ⚈  Ms. Sue Roth   ⚈   Mr. Dana Sales 

Mr. Abel Sanchez   ⚈    Mr. Bruce Van Allen 

Santa Cruz County Cypress Charter High School 
Outreach Plan for Recruitment 

Our goal is to create enthusiasm to ensure we increase enrollment to 135 students for the 2019-20 
school year. Our enrollment has been declining, we feel that Cypress offers a unique learning 
environment that offers academic rigor within a safe, supportive space. Cypress fosters a diverse 
student body through an inclusive community where each individual is seen and valued. The 
school’s mission is for students to utilize critical thinking skills in real-world applications, achieving 
personal and academic growth through a student-centered learning environment and a college 
preparatory curriculum.  

Our goal is to help prospective students and teachers recognize that our school is a match to their 
strengths, needs, and interests. We hope to increase awareness in the community about the 
transition of the school to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to emphasize the stability, 
resourcefulness, and innovation that this union has created.  

We have developed an outreach team that includes Cypress staff and Alternative Education 
leadership members to focus our efforts. We plan to take the following steps to engage our 
community and recruit potential students:  

● Create a flyer to distribute to school counselors, Alt. Ed. Intake staff, and non-profit
organizations, such as Encompass - Distribute a flyer ASAP and complete a professional
brochure for distribution by July, 2019

● Actively recruit at the local junior high/middle school programs. We hope to reach out
to school counselors who can help us identify students who may be interested in this
unique learning environment - Now through June 2019

● Develop a website and create a link to the SCCOE Website - Prior to August 2019

● Develop a social media presence. Encourage post sharing and check-ins - Ongoing

● Using the Alternative Education intake process to identify students who may have

interest in Cypress - Ongoing

62



Santa Cruz County Board of Education 
Regular Meeting 
May 16, 2019  

● Develop a 1 minute video that could be shown at movie theatres -  By September 2019

● Run a short commercial in a popular local radio station such as KSCO - Before August
2019

● Develop a summer school program that provides a-g credit recovery and opportunities
to get ahead - By March 2020

● Develop a pathway, likely focused on the arts - By June 2020

63



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

FROM : Dr. Faris Sabbah, County Superintendent of Schools  

SUBJECT : Approve the Santa Cruz County Office of Education 2019-2020 Calendar 

BACKGROUND 

The Board will be asked to Approved the Santa Cruz County Office of Education 
Calendar for the 2019-2020 school year.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Approve SCCOE Calendar. 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

None.  

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #8.1 
64



 
 

 
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, Superintendent 

400 Encinal Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

 
2019-2020 UNAPPROVED SCCOE Education School Calendar 

 
2019 M T W TH F 
      
July      
 1 2 3 4 5 
 8 9 10 11 12 
 15 16 17 18 19 
 22 23 24 25 26 
 29 30 31   
      
Aug.    1 2 
 5 6 7 8 9 
 12 13 14 15 16 
 19 20 21 22 23 
 26 27 28 29 30 
      
Sept. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30     
Oct.  1 2 3 4 
 7 8 9 10 11 
 14 15 16 17 18 
 21 22 23 24 25 
 28 29 30 31  
      
Nov.     1 
 4 5 6 7 8 
 11 12 13 14 15 
 18 19 20 21 22 
 25 26 27 28 29 
      
Dec. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30 31    
      

 
 
 
Board Approved:  

 
NOTABLE DATES 

 
July 4 - Independence Day 
Aug. 19 - Orientation Day 
Aug. 21 - First Student Day 
Sept. 2 - Labor Day 
Nov. 11 - Veterans Day 
Nov. 27, 29 - Board Holiday 
Nov. 28 - Thanksgiving Day 
Dec. 24 - Board Holiday 
Dec. 25 - Legal Holiday 
Dec. 31 - Board Holiday 
Jan. 1 - Legal Holiday 
Jan. 6.   -  First day of 2nd Semester 
Jan. 20 - ML King Jr. Day 
Feb. 12 - Lincoln’s Birthday 
Feb. 17 - Presidents’ Day 
May 25 - Memorial Day 
June 5 - Last Student Day 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 M T W TH F 
      
Jan.   1 2 3 
 6 7 8 9 10 
 13 14 15 16 17 
 20 21 22 23 24 
 27 28 29 30 31 
      
Feb.      
 3 4 5 6 7 
 10 11 12 13 14 
 17 18 19 20 21 
 24 25 26 27 28 
      
Mar. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30 31    
      
Apr.   1 2 3 
 6 7 8 9 10 
 13 14 15 16 17 
 20 21 22 23 24 
 27 28 29 30  
      
May     1 
 4 5 6 7 8 
 11 12 13 14 15 
 18 19 20 21 22 
 25 26 27 28 29 
      
June 1 2 3 4 5 
 8 9 10 11 12 
 15 16 17 18 19 
 22 23 24 25 26 
 29 30    
      

 

 
LEGEND 

 
Legal Holiday 

 

 Board Holiday 

 

 Orientation 
Day/Teacher work 
day, 

 

 Winter/Spring Breaks 

 
Start/End of the 
Semester 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO : Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

FROM : John Rice, Director,  Alternative Education Department 

SUBJECT : Approve the Alternative Education 2019-2020 Calendar 

BACKGROUND 

The Alternative Education Calendar covers the 2019-2020 School Year for our Juvenile, 
Court and Community Schools (JCCS) as well as for our Career Advancement Charter 
(CAC) and Cypress Charter. 

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Approve the Alternative Education 2019-2020 Calendar. 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #8.2 
66



 
 

 
 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
Dr. Faris M. Sabbah, Superintendent 

400 Encinal Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

 
2019-2020 UNAPPROVED Alternative Education School Calendar 

 
2019 M T W TH F 
      
July      
 1 2 3 4 5 
 8 9 10 11 12 
 15 16 17 18 19 
 22 23 24 25 26 
 29 30 31   
      
Aug.    1 2 
 5 6 7 8 9 
 12 13 14 15 16 
 19 20 21 22 23 
 26 27 28 29 30 
      
Sept. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30     
Oct.  1 2 3 4 
 7 8 9 10 11 
 14 15 16 17 18 
 21 22 23 24 25 
 28 29 30 31  
      
Nov.     1 
 4 5 6 7 8 
 11 12 13 14 15 
 18 19 20 21 22 
 25 26 27 28 29 
      
Dec. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30 31    
      

 
 
 
Board Approved:  

 
NOTABLE DATES 

 
July 4 - Independence Day 
Aug. 19 - Orientation Day 
Aug. 21 - First Student Day 
Sept. 2 - Labor Day 
Nov. 11 - Veterans Day 
Nov. 27, 29 - Board Holiday 
Nov. 28 - Thanksgiving Day 
Dec. 24 - Board Holiday 
Dec. 25 - Legal Holiday 
Dec. 31 - Board Holiday 
Jan. 1 - Legal Holiday 
Jan. 6.   -  First day of 2nd Semester 
Jan. 20 - ML King Jr. Day 
Feb. 12 - Lincoln’s Birthday 
Feb. 17 - Presidents’ Day 
May 25 - Memorial Day 
June 5 - Last Student Day 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 M T W TH F 
      
Jan.   1 2 3 
 6 7 8 9 10 
 13 14 15 16 17 
 20 21 22 23 24 
 27 28 29 30 31 
      
Feb.      
 3 4 5 6 7 
 10 11 12 13 14 
 17 18 19 20 21 
 24 25 26 27 28 
      
Mar. 2 3 4 5 6 
 9 10 11 12 13 
 16 17 18 19 20 
 23 24 25 26 27 
 30 31    
      
Apr.   1 2 3 
 6 7 8 9 10 
 13 14 15 16 17 
 20 21 22 23 24 
 27 28 29 30  
      
May     1 
 4 5 6 7 8 
 11 12 13 14 15 
 18 19 20 21 22 
 25 26 27 28 29 
      
June 1 2 3 4 5 
 8 9 10 11 12 
 15 16 17 18 19 
 22 23 24 25 26 
 29 30    
      

 

 
LEGEND 

 
Legal Holiday 

 

 Board Holiday 
 

 Orientation Day 
 

 Winter/Spring Breaks 

 

Staff Development 
Days (No School) 
 
Start/End of the 
Semester 



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 X Action Information 

TO : Santa Cruz County Board of Education 

FROM : John Rice, Director,  Alternative Education Department 

SUBJECT : Approve the Work Experience Education (WEE) Program 

BACKGROUND 

The Secondary District Plan is a three year agreement that  our LEA agrees to comply 
with. It is 18 assurances appropriate to Federal and State regulations , California Labor 
Code, California Education Code and Title 5. 
It covers and assures among other things that SCCOE is keeping appropriate records, 
has an appropriately credentialed  work experience coordinator, who oversees 
enrollment for students , grant credit per our county policy,have appropriately trained 
work experience staff, as well as provide professional development.  
Every three years the State asks the  LEA’s board to review and approve the work 
permit issuance and guideline.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION: 

Approve the WEE Program. 

FUNDING IMPLICATIONS 

Board Meeting Date: May 16, 2019 Agenda Item: #8.3 68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91


	Board Package.pdf
	Binder8.pdf
	2019-2020 SCCOE Calendar to Board




